Les Waters Senior Manager, Licensing

Email: <u>licensing.enquiries@orr.gov.uk</u>

14 July 2022



To consultees:

British Transport Police Authority

CAHA

Colas Rail Limited

DB Cargo (UK) Limited

Department for Transport
Direct Rail Services Limited

Freightliner Group
GB Railfreight Limited

London TravelWatch

National Assembly for Wales

Network Rail Infrastructure Limited

Rail Delivery Group

Rail Freight Group

Rail Safety and Standards Board

Transport Focus

Transport for London

Transport for Wales

Transport North East Transport Scotland

Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport

Executive

Also published on the ORR website

Statutory consultation on a network licence for the operator of the Metro Shared Network

Introduction

The Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive (trading as "Nexus") is a passenger transport executive and a public body corporate established pursuant to, and obtaining its powers from, the Transport Act 1968 (as amended), which works to create better transport networks in Tyne and Wear. Nexus has applied for a network licence to operate a newly-aligned and merged twin-track network between Pelaw Junction and Jarrow Oil Terminal ("the Metro Shared Network", hereafter the "MSN").

We consulted on the scope of a network licence for Nexus' operation of the MSN on 12 May 2022. We received one response, from Transport North East, who was supportive of the proposals.¹

ORR's regulation of the Metro Shared Network

The MSN will be unusual in that there will be a shared use of a metro system where part of that network is covered by the access provisions of the Railways Act 1993, and part is exempted under a Statutory Instrument: *The Railways (Class and Miscellaneous Exemptions) Order 1994* ("the CMEO"). Therefore, together with our consultation of 12 May 2022, we also published a regulatory statement to explain how we will apply the established legal and contractual framework to regulation in the specific circumstances of the MSN, once constructed.²

Page 1 of 30

Head Office: 25 Cabot Square, London E14 4QZ T: 020 7282 2000 www.orr.gov.uk

¹ A copy of our initial consultation and comments received can be found on our website at https://www.orr.gov.uk/guidance-compliance/rail/operator-licences-exemptions/current-licence-casework-consultations

² A copy of our regulatory statement for the MSN is available at https://www.orr.gov.uk/media/23365/download



Our consultation included the background to Nexus' plans to merge some 2.8km of Network Rail's track into its own network, and we provided details and schematics to describe the proposals. We outlined the form and scope of an appropriate network licence for the MSN, taking into account the other protection for users of the MSN and our need to be proportionate.

Having considered the responses to our initial consultation, we are consulting formally on the draft of a network licence for Nexus' operation of the MSN. The proposed licence is at **Annex A**. Our statutory notice is at **Annex B**.

Subject to the land transfer between Network Rail and Nexus completing, we intend to issue a network licence in early September 2022.

Responding to this consultation

We would welcome your views on this statutory consultation.

Please send your responses, preferably by email, to <u>licensing.enquiries@orr.gov.uk</u>. Alternatively, you can send a hardcopy response to:

Licensing Team Office of Rail and Road 25 Cabot Square London, E14 4QZ

Please mark your response "Consultation on a MSN network licence", ensuring that it reaches us **no later than 11 August 2022**.

This consultation is also being published on our website.

Les Waters



We plan to publish all responses to this consultation on our website. This may include your personal data such as your name and job title.

Should you wish any information that you provide, including personal data, to be treated as confidential, please be aware that this may be subject to publication, or release to other parties or to disclosure, in accordance with the access to information regimes. These regimes are primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA), the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA) and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

Under the FOIA, there is a statutory code of practice with which public authorities must comply and which deals, amongst other things, with obligations of confidence. In view of this, if you are seeking confidentiality for information you are providing, please explain why. If we receive a request for disclosure of the information, we will take full account of your explanation, but we cannot give an assurance that confidentiality can be maintained in all circumstances. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT system will not, of itself, be regarded as binding on ORR.

If you are seeking to make a response in confidence, we would also be grateful if you would annex any confidential information, or provide a non-confidential summary, so that we can publish the non-confidential aspects of your response.

Any personal data you provide to us will be used for the purposes of this consultation and will be handled in accordance with our **privacy notice** which sets out how we comply with the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018.

Consent

In responding to this consultation you consent to us:

- handling your personal data for the purposes of this consultation;
- publishing your response on our website (unless you have indicated to us that you wish for your response to be treated as confidential as set out above.)
- Your consent to either of the above can be withdrawn at any time. Further information about how we handle your personal data and your rights is set out in our **privacy notice**.

Format of responses

So that we are able to apply web standards to content on our website, we would prefer that you email us your response either in Microsoft Word format or OpenDocument Text (.odt) format. Files in the OpenDocument format have a fully open file format and do not rely on any specific piece of software.

If you send us a PDF document, please:

- create it directly from an electronic word-processed file using pdf creation software (rather than as a scanned image of a printout); and
- ensure that the PDF's security method is set to no security in the document properties.

Network Licence granted to Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive

Reference Number

Table of contents

		PAGE
Part I	- Scope	1
Part I	I - Interpretation	3
Part I	II - Conditions	10
Part A	A - Core Duties and network management	10
1	Core Duties	10
2	Network Management	12
Part E	3 - Industry obligations	14
3	Information on Stakeholder dealings	
4	Safety and standards	15
5	Environment	16
Part (C - Corporate matters	17
6	Fees	
7	Insurance	18
8	Claims allocation and handling	19
9	Change of Control	
10	Information for ORR	21
11	Emergency access	22
	D - Restrictions	
	Non-discrimination	
	Restricted use of Protected Information	
	V Develoption	25

Part I - Scope

- 1. The Office of Rail and Road ("ORR"), in exercise of the powers conferred by section 8 of the Railways Act 1993 (as amended) ("the Act"), hereby grants to Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive whose principal address is Nexus House, St James Boulevard, Newcastle Upon Tyne, NE1 4AX, a licence authorising the licence holder:
 - (a) to be the operator of the Metro Shared Network;
 - (b) to be the operator of a train being used on any network for any purpose comprised in the operation of the Metro Shared Network; and
 - (c) to be the operator of a train being used on any network for a purpose preparatory or incidental to, or consequential on, using a train as mentioned in paragraph (b) above,
 - subject to the Conditions set out in Part III.
- 2. In accordance with section 10 of the Act, and in recognition that part of the Metro Shared Network is exempt by virtue of article 3 of the CMEO, where the licence holder is carrying out a mixed activity (as defined in that section of the Act), the Conditions shall have effect in relation to the whole, or some part, of so much of the mixed activity as is necessary to give full effect to the Conditions in relation to the licensed activity.
- 3. This licence shall come into force on [date] and shall continue in force unless and until revoked in accordance with Part IV.

[date]	Signed by authority of the
	Office of Rail and Road

Part II - Interpretation

Definitions

1. In this licence:

"Access Charge" means any amount payable or proposed to be paid under an

access contract or an installation access contract;

"Affiliate"

in relation to the licence holder means any holding company or subsidiary of the licence holder or any subsidiary of a holding company of the licence holder, in each case within the meaning of sections 1159, 1160 of and Schedule 6 to the

Companies Act 2006;

"Capacity

Allocation Process"

has the meaning set out in Condition 2.1;

"CMEO"

means the Railways (Class and Miscellaneous Exemptions)

Order 1994;

"Code"

means the Railway Group Standards Code established by

RSSB:

"Comply"

is to be interpreted in accordance with ORR's most recently

published licensing guidance;

"Constitution Agreement" means the contract of that name which sets out the purpose and governance of RSSB and to which members of RSSB must be a party;

"Control"

- (a) A person is taken to have control of the licence holder if he exercises, or is able to exercise or is entitled to acquire, direct or indirect control over the licence holder's affairs, and in particular if he possesses or is entitled to acquire:
 - (i) 30% or more of any share capital or issued share capital of the licence holder or of the voting power in the licence holder; or
 - (ii) such part of any issued share capital of the licence holder as would, if the whole of the

income of the licence holder were in fact distributed among the participators (without regard to any rights which he or any other person has as a loan creditor), entitle him to receive 30% or more of the amount so distributed; or

- (iii) such rights as would, in the event of the winding-up of the licence holder or in any other circumstances, entitle him to receive 30% or more of the assets of the licence holder which would then be available for distribution among the participators.
- (b) Subsections (4) to (6) of section 416 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, and the legislative provisions referred to in those subsections, apply to the interpretation of paragraph (a) in the same way that they apply to the interpretation of subsection (2) of section 416 of that Act;

"Environmental Policy"

has the meaning set out in Condition 5.1(a);

"Financial Year"

means a 12 month period beginning on 1 April;

"Land"

includes buildings and other structures, land covered by water, and any estate, interest, easements, servitudes or rights in or over land;

"Licensed Activities" means things authorised to be done by the licence holder in its capacity as operator of a network or trains under this licence (which includes, pursuant to and in accordance with section 10 of the Act, those activities that the licence holder is carrying out as a mixed activity (as defined in that section of the Act), given that part of the Metro Shared Network is exempt from the requirement to have a network licence under the Act by virtue of the CMEO, in order for the conditions of this licence to have full effect in relation to so much of the mixed activity as consists of the licensed activity (to the minimum extent necessary and not otherwise affecting the exempt status of such railway under the CMEO));

"Metro Shared Network"

means the network situated between the Pelaw Junction connection point (where the licence holder's network connects to Network Rail's infrastructure) and the connection point at the Jarrow Oil Terminal (where the network connects to the railway sidings that serve the Jarrow Oil Terminal), comprising:

- (a) the railway that was known as the Jarrow branch line (prior to the land transfer to Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive); and
- (b) that part of the railway forming part of the Tyne and Wear metro network which is adjacent to the railway described in paragraph (a) and which is exempt from licensing under the CMEO,

and includes any extensions to the Metro Shared Network which have been notified to ORR and in respect of which ORR has consented;

"Network"

means the network of which the licence holder is the operator under this licence;

"Network Code"

means the set of rules called the "Metro Network Code" which is incorporated by reference into, and therefore forms part of, each bilateral access contract between the licence holder and the beneficiary under that access contract;

"Network Rail"

means Network Rail Infrastructure Limited, a private limited company incorporated in England and Wales (company registration number 02904587);

"Potential Funder"

means any person who has expressed to the licence holder in writing a serious and credible interest in providing or intention to provide finance for or in connection with:

- (a) services relating to railways; or
- (b) a railway facility or a network, including one which is proposed to be constructed or is in the course of construction;

"Potential Provider"

means any person who has expressed to the licence holder in writing a serious and credible interest in providing or intention to provide:

- (a) services relating to railways; or
- (b) a railway facility or a network, including one which is proposed to be constructed or is in the course of construction;

"Protected Information"

means any information which:

- (a) relates to the affairs of a particular person; and
- (b) has been provided to or obtained by the licence holder in the course of its dealings in connection with any actual or proposed agreement which is in a class of agreement referred to in the Act,

but excluding information that is in or enters into the public domain otherwise than as a consequence of disclosure by the licence holder (or any person to whom it is disclosed by the licence holder) which will breach Condition 13;

"Rail Industry Standards"

has the meaning set out in the Standards Manual, established by RSSB;

"Railway Group Standards" means standards authorised under the Code;

"Related Undertaking"

in relation to the licence holder means any undertaking in which the licence holder has a participating interest (and for this purpose "undertaking" has the meaning given by section 1161 of the Companies Act 2006, and "participating interest" is to be construed in accordance with paragraph 8 of Schedule 8 to the Small Companies and Groups (Accounts and Directors' Report) Regulations 2008;

"Relevant Assets"

means:

- (a) any Land;
- (b) any railway assets; and
- (c) any other assets (including information technology systems) which have, or are designed to have, a dedicated use in the operation, maintenance, renewal, replacement, improvement, enhancement or development of the Network,

in which the licence holder has an interest, whether legal or beneficial, including as owner, occupier, operator, lessee (of whatever rank) or as the holder of any other right, but excluding the purposes of any provision assets falling within a description or class which ORR determines to be subject to an exclusion from the application of that provision, and which shall exclude the Tyne and Wear metro stations of Hebburn and Jarrow (which are exempt from the requirement for a station licence under the Act pursuant to the CMEO);

"Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements"

has the meaning set out in Condition 8.1;

"Relevant Person"

means each train operator, each holder of an access option and each other person who has been allowed to participate in the procedure for developing the timetable under the Network Code, as amended from time to time;

"Relevant Industry Processes" means arrangements, whether contractual, regulatory or voluntary, to which the licence holder is a party, or is subject, which involve establishing, or making changes to, a timetable;

"RSSB"

means Rail Safety and Standards Board Limited (a company limited by guarantee and registered in England and Wales under number 04655675), and its successors and assigns;

"Stakeholder" means any person:

- (a) who has, or in the future is likely to have, a significant relationship with the licence holder;
- (b) who may be impacted by the activities of the licence holder;
- (c) who is a Potential Funder; or
- (d) who is a Potential Provider;

"Stakeholder Engagement Duty" has the meaning set out in Condition 1.4.

Definitions and rules of interpretation in legislation

- 2. The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply to this licence as if it were an Act of Parliament.
- Terms and expressions defined in the Act, the Transport Act 2000 and the Railways Act 2005 shall, unless the context requires otherwise, have the same meanings in this licence.

General rules of interpretation

- 4. Any reference in this licence to a numbered paragraph is a reference to the paragraph bearing that number in the condition in which the reference occurs.
- 5. In interpreting this licence, headings shall be disregarded.
- 6. In this licence, where there is an overlap between two or more provisions:
 - (a) compliance with any more specific obligations shall not be regarded as exhaustive of compliance with more general obligations; and
 - (b) in complying with these more specific obligations, the licence holder shall at all times comply with the more general obligations.

Time limits

- 7. Where in this licence the licence holder is required to comply with any obligation within a specified time limit, that obligation shall be deemed to continue after that time limit if the licence holder fails to comply with that obligation within that time limit.
- 8. Where this licence provides for anything to be done by any person within a particular period of time or on or by a particular day or date, ORR may vary

that period, day or date by giving notice to the licence holder and such other persons as it considers are likely to be affected by the variation.

Provision of information

- 9. Where a condition of this licence requires the licence holder to produce a document or to provide information, this shall not require it to produce a document or to provide information:
 - (a) for any purpose referred to in section 58 of the Act which the licence holder could not be compelled to produce or provide under that section; or
 - (b) which the licence holder could not be compelled to produce or to give in evidence in civil proceedings in any court.

Disclosure of information

10. Where in this licence there is a requirement relating to the disclosure of information by the licence holder, references to the disclosure of information shall include authorising disclosure of, or access, to such information.

ORR consent

- 11. Where in this licence there is a provision for ORR to give its consent:
 - (a) ORR may give such consent subject to conditions; and
 - (b) any consent given shall be in writing and may be expressed in general or specific terms.

Service of documents

12. The provisions of section 149 of the Act shall apply for the purposes of the service of any document pursuant to this licence.

Part III - Conditions

Part A - Core Duties and network management

1 Core Duties

Network Management Duty

- 1.1 The "Network Management Purpose" is to secure:
 - (a) the operation and maintenance of the Network; and
 - (b) the renewal and replacement of the Network; and
 - (c) the improvement, enhancement and development of the Network,

in each case in accordance with best practice and in a timely, efficient and economical manner so as to satisfy the requirements set out in Condition 1.2.

- 1.2 For these purposes, the requirements are the reasonable requirements of persons providing services relating to the carriage of passengers and goods by railway, in respect of:
 - (a) the quality and capability of the Network; and
 - (b) the facilitation of railway service performance in respect of services for the carriage of passengers and goods by railway operating on the Network.
- 1.3 The licence holder shall achieve the Network Management Purpose to the greatest extent reasonably practicable having regard to all relevant circumstances including the ability of the licence holder to finance its Licensed Activities (the "Network Management Duty").
- 1.4 In complying with the Network Management Duty, the licence holder shall in particular ensure that it duly takes into account the interests of all classes of passenger operator and freight operator in satisfying the requirements set out in Condition 1.2.

Stakeholder Engagement Duty

- 1.5 The "Stakeholder Engagement Purpose" is to ensure that the licence holder treats Stakeholders in ways appropriate to their reasonable requirements in their capacity as Stakeholders.
- 1.6 The licence holder shall achieve the Stakeholder Engagement Purpose and, in particular, shall, to the greatest extent reasonably practicable:

- (a) deal with Stakeholders with due efficiency and economy, in a timely manner and with the degree of skill, diligence, prudence and foresight which should be exercised by a skilled and experienced network facility owner and operator; and
- (b) ensure that its engagement with Stakeholders is:
 - effective, including by ensuring Stakeholders' views are duly taken into account;
 - (ii) inclusive, in that the licence holder seeks to involve all relevant Stakeholders in a fair and proportionate manner, including by adopting different approaches to reflect Stakeholders' different capabilities and interests;
 - (iii) well-governed, in that it is underpinned by effective processes and governance arrangements; and
 - (iv) transparent, in that sufficient information is made available to enable effective engagement with Stakeholders,

(the "Stakeholder Engagement Duty").

2 Network Management

Capacity allocation

- 2.1 The licence holder shall to the greatest extent reasonably practicable:
 - (a) establish and maintain an efficient and effective process for managing the allocation of capacity on the Network (the "Capacity Allocation Process"), which:
 - (i) reflects best practice; and
 - (ii) clearly assigns responsibilities for all parts of the process;
 - (b) keep the Capacity Allocation Process under review and where necessary and appropriate, make changes to it;
 - (c) comply with any other responsibilities which are set out for it in the Capacity Allocation Process;
 - (d) promptly and duly respond to any requests for information in relation to the allocation of capacity, taking all reasonable steps to ensure that information provided is accurate; and
 - (e) promptly and duly respond to any requests for advice on the allocation of capacity, ensuring that such advice is given by persons with appropriate expertise and in a transparent and impartial manner (including ensuring that there is no undue discrimination).
- 2.2 In complying with this Condition, the licence holder shall cooperate with Network Rail and any Potential Provider, Potential Funder and appropriate franchising authority so as to identify ways in which its reasonable requirements in respect of the allocation of capacity on the Network may be satisfied.

Timetable planning

- 2.3 The licence holder shall to the greatest extent reasonably practicable:
 - (a) run an efficient and effective process, reflecting best practice, for establishing a timetable, and any changes to it;
 - (b) where necessary and appropriate, initiate changes to Relevant Industry Processes; and
 - (c) where necessary and appropriate, cooperate with Network Rail to achieve the requirements of this Condition,

- so as to enable persons providing railway services and other Relevant Persons to plan their businesses with a reasonable degree of assurance and to meet their obligations to railway users.
- 2.4 The licence holder shall secure that the decisions in respect of timetabling on the Network are made by persons with appropriate expertise and in a transparent and impartial manner (including ensuring that there is no undue discrimination).
- 2.5 The licence holder shall respond expeditiously to any timetabling matter which a train operator reasonably considers to be urgent.

Timetable disputes

2.6 The licence holder shall use reasonable endeavours to resolve promptly any timetabling disputes.

Maintaining asset information

- 2.7 The licence holder shall maintain:
 - (a) appropriate information about the Relevant Assets, including information about their condition, capability and capacity; and
 - (b) appropriate collated information about the Relevant Assets on a Network-wide basis.
- 2.8 The information maintained under Condition 2.7 must be accurate and readily accessible on request.

Part B - Industry obligations

3 Information on Stakeholder dealings

- 3.1 The licence holder shall:
 - (a) publish information, by code of practice or otherwise, on the principles and procedures by which it will comply with the Stakeholder Engagement Duty;
 - (b) ensure that the information which is published is sufficient in form and content to facilitate efficient and effective dealings between the licence holder and its Stakeholders; and
 - (c) from time to time and whenever directed by ORR review and, if necessary, revise the information so that it may better facilitate such dealings.

4 Safety and standards

- 4.1 Except where ORR consents otherwise, the licence holder shall:
 - (a) be a member of RSSB and a party to the Constitution Agreement;
 - (b) comply with its obligations under the Constitution Agreement and the articles of association of RSSB; and
 - (c) exercise its rights under the Constitution Agreement and the articles of association of RSSB so as to ensure that RSSB acts in accordance with the Constitution Agreement.
- 4.2 The licence holder shall comply with:
 - (a) the Code;
 - (b) such Railway Group Standards as are applicable to its Licensed Activities; and
 - (c) subject to Condition 4.3, such Rail Industry Standards (or parts thereof) as are applicable to its Licensed Activities.
- 4.3 The licence holder is not required to comply with an applicable Rail Industry Standard (or part thereof) where:
 - (a) it has, following consultation with such persons as it considers are likely to be affected, identified an equally effective measure which will achieve the purpose of the standard; and
 - (b) it has adopted and is complying with that measure.

5 Environment

Environmental Policy

- 5.1 The licence holder shall establish and maintain:
 - (a) a written policy designed to protect the environment from the effect of Licensed Activities (the "Environmental Policy"); and
 - (b) operational objectives and management arrangements to give effect to the Environmental Policy,

taking due account of any relevant guidance issued to it by ORR from time to time.

- 5.2 The licence holder shall review and if necessary revise the Environmental Policy, the operational objectives and the management arrangements periodically and otherwise as appropriate having regard to all relevant circumstances.
- 5.3 Where it makes a material modification to the Environmental Policy, operational objectives or management arrangements, the licence holder shall promptly send to ORR a copy of the Environmental Policy and a general description of the operational objectives and management arrangements.
- 5.4 The licence holder shall have regard to the Environmental Policy and operational objectives and use its reasonable endeavours to operate the management arrangements effectively.

Extent of this condition

5.5 Nothing contained in this condition shall require the undertaking of any action that entails excessive cost, taking into account all relevant circumstances including the nature and scale of operations of the type carried out by the licence holder.

Part C - Corporate matters

6 Fees

- 6.1 In each Financial Year, the licence holder shall make a payment to ORR which is the aggregate of:
 - (a) the annual fee for this licence, as determined by ORR; and
 - (b) an amount which ORR has determined is a fair proportion of the amount estimated by ORR (following consultation with the Competition and Markets Authority) as having been incurred by the Competition and Markets Authority in the calendar year immediately preceding the end of the Financial Year in connection with references made to it under section 13 of the Act relating to:
 - (i) this licence; or
 - (ii) any class of licence of which ORR determines that this licence forms part.
- 6.2 The licence holder shall make the payment determined under Condition 6.1 by such date as ORR requires, being not less than 30 days after the day on which ORR notifies the licence holder of the amount of the payment.

7 Insurance

- 7.1 The licence holder shall:
 - (a) maintain insurance against third party liabilities in respect of the Licensed Activities; and
 - (b) ensure that such insurance is on terms to which ORR has consented.

8 Claims allocation and handling

- 8.1 Except where ORR consents otherwise, the licence holder shall at all times be a party to the agreements or arrangements relating to:
 - (a) the handling of claims against operators of railway assets; and
 - (b) the allocation of liabilities among operators of railway assets, which have been approved by ORR from time to time (the "Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements").
- 8.2 Except with the consent of ORR, the licence holder shall not, in relation to any of the Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements, enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other party to the Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements:
 - (a) under which the licence holder agrees not to exercise any rights which it has under any of the Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements; or
 - (b) varying the Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements, other than as provided for under the terms of the Relevant Claims Handling Arrangements.

9 Change of Control

9.1 The licence holder shall, if any person obtains Control of the licence holder, notify ORR as soon as practicable thereafter.

10 Information for ORR

- 10.1 The licence holder shall provide to ORR on request any information which ORR reasonably requires for the purpose of carrying out any of its functions under Part I of the Act, subject to Condition 10.2.
- 10.2 This condition shall not require the provision of information to ORR for the purposes of any function of ORR under sections 69 and 71 of the Act.
- 10.3 Information required to be provided under this condition shall be provided in such form and manner and at such times as reasonably requested by ORR.

11 Emergency access

11.1 During any emergency affecting the railway, the licence holder shall, to the extent that it is legally entitled to do so, grant to any person requesting it such permission to use any Network of which the licence holder is the operator pursuant to this licence as is necessary or expedient to alleviate the effects of the emergency.

Part D - Restrictions

12 Non-discrimination

- 12.1 The licence holder shall not in its Licensed Activities, or in carrying out any other function contemplated by this licence, unduly discriminate between particular persons or between any classes or descriptions of person.
- 12.2 In particular, for these purposes the licence holder shall not unduly discriminate against:
 - (a) freight operators; or
 - (b) passenger operators in respect of passenger services which cross more than one network.

13 Restricted use of Protected Information

- 13.1 The licence holder shall not disclose Protected Information other than:
 - (a) with the consent of the person to whose affairs the Protected Information relates:
 - (b) to employees, agents, consultants, advisers and contractors of the licence holder to the extent necessary for the effective conduct of Licensed Activities;
 - (c) to the Secretary of State, Scottish Ministers, the Welsh Assembly Government, or ORR; or
 - (d) to the North East Combined Authority ("NECA"), the North of Tyne Combined Authority ("NoTCA"), or the Joint Transport Committee (which is the joint transport committee of NECA and NoTCA) (in each case, including their successors, and including such bodies as may be reorganised or reconstituted from time to time);
 - (e) to Network Rail; or
 - (f) in compliance with the duties of the licence holder under the Act, conditions of any licence, any other enactment, any requirement of the London Stock Exchange or any regulatory authority or pursuant to any judicial or arbitral process.
- 13.2 Where the licence holder discloses Protected Information to a person in a manner which is permitted under Condition 13.1, the licence holder shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that the person:
 - (a) does not use the Protected Information for any purpose other than that for which it was provided to that person; and
 - (b) does not disclose the Protected Information other than in accordance with the provisions of this condition.

Part IV - Revocation

- 1. ORR may revoke this licence at any time if agreed in writing by the licence holder.
- 2. ORR may revoke this licence by not less than three months' notice to the licence holder:
 - (a) if a final order has been made, or a provisional order has been confirmed under section 55 of the Act, in respect of any contravention or apprehended contravention by the licence holder of any Condition, and the licence holder does not comply with the order within a period of three months beginning with the day on which ORR gives notice to the licence holder stating that this licence will be revoked pursuant to this term if the licence holder does not so comply; provided that ORR shall not give any such notice before the expiration of the period within which an application could be made under section 57 of the Act in relation to the order in question or before any proceedings relating to any such application are finally determined; or
 - (b) if the licence holder has not commenced carrying on Licensed Activities within one year beginning with the day on which this licence comes into force or if the licence holder ceases to carry on Licensed Activities for a continuous period of at least one year; or
 - (c) if the licence holder is convicted of an offence under section 146 of the Act in making its application for this licence; or
 - (d) if any person obtains Control of the licence holder and:
 - (i) ORR has not approved that obtaining of Control;
 - (ii) within one month of that obtaining of Control coming to the notice of ORR, ORR serves notice on the licence holder stating that ORR proposes to revoke this licence in pursuance of this paragraph unless the person who has obtained Control of the licence holder ceases to have Control of the licence holder within the period of three months beginning with the day of service of the notice; and
 - (iii) that cessation of Control does not take place within that period.



Notice of proposal to grant a licence

The Railways Act 1993 (the Act)

Application by:

Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive (the applicant)

Principal Address:

Nexus House St James Boulevard Newcastle upon Tyne NE1 4AX

Company Officers:

Tobyn James Hughes Martin John Kearney John Dowey Fenwick

The Office of Rail and Road gives notice in accordance with section 8(4) of the Act that it proposes to grant the applicant a network licence to be used in Great Britain, subject to all legal requirements being fulfilled by the applicant.

The network licence will authorise the applicant to be the operator of the Metro Shared Network.

We propose to grant the licence on the grounds that the applicant has shown itself to be a fit and proper person.

Please send any comments preferably by email on this proposal by 11 August 2022 to:

The Licensing Team
Office of Rail and Road
25 Cabot Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 4QZ

email: licensing.enquiries@orr.gov.uk

Date of Publication: 14 July 2022

licence Office of Rail and Road